South Cambridgeshire Hall Cambourne Business Park Cambourne Cambridge CB23 6EA

t: 03450 450 500 f: 01954 713149 dx: DX 729500 Cambridge 15 minicom: 01480 376743 www.scambs.gov.uk

South Cambridgeshire District Council

3 May 2013

To:

Chairman – Councillor Robert Turner Vice-Chairman – Councillor David Bard All Members of the Planning Committee - Councillors Val Barrett, Brian Burling, Lynda Harford, Tumi Hawkins, Sebastian Kindersley, David McCraith, Charles Nightingale, Deborah Roberts, Neil Scarr, Hazel Smith and Nick Wright

Quorum:

Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend the next meeting of **PLANNING COMMITTEE**, which will be held in the **COUNCIL CHAMBER, FIRST FLOOR** at South Cambridgeshire Hall on **WEDNESDAY, 8 MAY** 2013 at 10.00 a.m.

Members are respectfully reminded that when substituting on committees, subcommittees, and outside or joint bodies, Democratic Services must be advised of the substitution *in advance of* the meeting. It is not possible to accept a substitute once the meeting has started. Council Standing Order 4.3 refers.

Yours faithfully **JEAN HUNTER** Chief Executive

The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to its agendas and minutes. We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, please let us know, and we will do what we can to help you.

AGENDA SUPPLEMENT

8. S/0327/13/FL - Milton (rear of Greengates, Fen Road)

PAGES 1 - 2

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The law allows Councils to consider a limited range of issues in private session without members of the Press and public being present. Typically, such issues relate to personal details, financial and business affairs, legal privilege and so on. In every case, the public interest in excluding the Press and Public from the meeting room must outweigh the public interest in having the information disclosed to them. The following statement will be proposed, seconded and voted upon.

"I propose that the Press and public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the following item number(s) in accordance with Section 100(A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that, if present, there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act."

If exempt (confidential) information has been provided as part of the agenda, the Press and public will not be able to view it. There will be an explanation on the website however as to why the information is exempt.

Notes

- (1) Some development control matters in this Agenda where the periods of consultation and representation may not have quite expired are reported to Committee to save time in the decision making process. Decisions on these applications will only be made at the end of the consultation periods after taking into account all material representations made within the full consultation period. The final decisions may be delegated to the Corporate Manager (Planning and Sustainable Communities).
- (2) The Council considers every planning application on its merits and in the context of national, regional and local planning policy. As part of the Council's customer service standards, Councillors and officers aim to put customers first, deliver outstanding service and provide easy access to services and information. At all times, we will treat customers with respect and will be polite, patient and honest. The Council is also committed to treat everyone fairly and justly, and to promote equality. This applies to all residents and customers, planning applicants and those people against whom the Council is taking, or proposing to take, planning enforcement action. More details can be found on the Council's website under 'Council and Democracy'.

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO:	Planning Committee
AUTHOR/S:	Planning and New Communities Director

8 May 2013

S/0327/13/FL - MILTON

Continued use of land for a temporary period of three years for the siting of portable prefabricated buildings for mixed storage/office/light industrial/ workers accommodation purposes (retrospective application).

Recommendation: Delegated approval

Date for Determination: 8 May 2013

Update to the report

Agenda report paragraph number 15 – Environmental Health Officer

- 1. The Environmental Health Officer has stated that he will assess the site for site licensing purposes as if it were for wholly residential occupation. There is an exemption for construction workers working on the same or adjacent site but not for the scenario described where workers stay for unlimited times, work in the area and may live more or less permanently on the site.
- 2. The Environmental Health Officer has not carried out a site visit to date but from the submitted documents and plans he is not convinced that the siting of units is fully compliant with site licensing requirements, and so would not grant a licence at present until the operator could show how these requirements could be achieved on site. He would also need to be satisfied that the units are fit for purpose i.e. habitable with adequate heating, insulation, good repair, washing and cooking facilities, drainage disposal, safe electric and gas appliances, water supply space for sleeping etc.

Agenda report paragraph number 26: Conditions – Legal Officer

3. The Legal Officer has advised that the specific wording of any condition to restrict the length of occupation and the type of occupier will require careful attention if it is to meet the tests set out in Circular 11/95 relating to planning conditions.

Further Information received after publication of the agenda report.

- 4. The agent has provided the following additional information:
- 5. The number of lets in the last twelve months.

All of the units have been let from time to time over the last year with about a dozen lets of periods varying between 1 and 6 months but with four of the units let to four companies for the whole period to provide facilities to support ongoing work in the area. They have retained the units over the period to ensure availability and these four units have been used for most of that period but not by the same occupants. Different people have stopped for various periods as and when needed to work in the area by the company employing them, with that

being dependent upon the specialist workers they need in connection with their work at the time.

- 6. Details of the length of stay of each let in that period. As outlined above, the length of the lets varies from about a month to up to a year but within that time the period any individual may stay can vary from a few days to several months dependent on their contract arrangements/the length of time they are needed on site.
- Whether occupiers were working in the local area i.e. Cambridge and villages within ten miles; All the occupiers of the units work in the local area within 10 miles of the site.
- 8. Were any lets wholly residential i.e. where no base for work was needed? No any residential use made of the units has been in connection with undertaking work in the local area.
- 9. Whether all the portable buildings have a bathroom and kitchen area? All the units have a shower room and kitchen area so as to be self-contained both in terms of any residential use and in respect of meeting the needs of those units used for business purposes.

Officer comment

- 10. The concerns of the Environmental Health Officer are noted, and may be capable of resolution with any necessary adjustments to the precise siting of units on the ground. The grant of planning permission would be separate from the issue of a site licence and would not depend upon it.
- 11. The Legal Officer has highlighted the need for precision in the wording of conditions, if planning permission is approved. Delegated authority is requested to enable suitable conditions or any legal agreement necessary to be finalised.

Contact Officer: Ray McMurray – Principal Planning Officer Telephone: (01954) 713259